

# TO THE MAYOR AND COUNCILLORS OF THE MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

# **Membership of the Strategy and Policy Committee:**

Claire Barlow (Chairperson/Mayor)

Murray Cox

Noel Jackson

Evan Williams

Russell Armstrong

James Leslie

Graham Smith

Notice is given of a meeting of the Strategy and Policy Committee to be held on Tuesday, November 25, 2014.

**VENUE:** Council Chambers, Fairlie.

**BUSINESS:** To adopt the council's Significance and

**Engagement Policy.** 

WAYNE BARNETT CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER



Agenda for Tuesday, November 25, 2014

**OPENING** 

**APOLOGIES** 

**DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST** 

# **MINUTES:**

Confirm and adopt as the correct record the minutes of the Strategy and Policy Committee meeting on October 16, 2014.

# **REPORTS:**

1. Adoption of Significance and Engagement Policy (attached).

# MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

# MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE STRATEGY AND POLICY COMMITTEE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, FAIRLIE, ON THURSDAY, OCTOBER 16, 2014, AT 1.00PM

# PRESENT:

Claire Barlow (Mayor/Chair)

Cr Murray Cox

Cr Graham Smith

Cr Noel Jackson

Cr Evan Williams

Cr James Leslie

Cr Russell Armstrong

# IN ATTENDANCE:

Wayne Barnett (Chief Executive Officer)

Nathan Hole (Planning and Regulation Manager)

Garth Nixon (Community Facilities Manager)

Paul Morris (Finance and Administration Manager)

Toni Morrison (Senior Planner)

Arlene Goss (Committee Clerk)

Alistair Munro (Public)

# **APOLOGIES:**

There were no apologies.

# **DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST:**

There were no declarations of interest.

# MINUTES:

Resolved that the committee confirm and adopt as a correct record the minutes of the Strategy and Policy Committee meeting on February 4, 2014.

Russell Armstrong/Graham Smith

# **REPORTS:**

# DRAFT SIGNIFICANCE AND ENGAGEMENT POLICY:

The purpose of this report was for the committee to approve the draft Significance and Engagement Policy and publically notify it for public submissions.

Toni Morrison said the council is required to have this policy in place by December 1, 2014. She outlined the thresholds that determine significant decisions under the new policy.

Section 6 (Strategic Assets) is a list of assets. The managers have suggested some changes to this which are shown on pages 11 and 12 of the report.

Cr Smith asked why the halls had been removed from the list of strategic assets. Paul Morris said the Twizel Events Centre, Tekapo Community Centre and Fairlie Community Centre are still considered to be significant strategic assets. Other halls are being run by local groups.

The Mayor said the halls are self-governed and not viewed as strategic assets by the rest of the community, although they are significant to the communities who use them. Leaving them on the list would mean we need to consult with the whole district through a public consultative process every time we change something. Local communities should govern these halls rather than the whole district.

Cr Smith argued that the halls were strategic assets. Paul Morris said this document was still to go out for public consultation and a hearing of submissions. People may submit on this matter. There is no intention to sell or dispose of the halls. Removing them from the list recognises they are self-governing and decisions are best made by the local communities who use the halls.

The Mayor suggested we write specifically to the hall committees to let them know about the change to the list of strategic assets.

Spur Road water has been removed from the list because it's part of the Allandale supply. The Kimbell water supply has also been removed because they are small and self-managed. It would be good to engage with that committee about that.

Regarding forestry assets, Paul Morris said he suggests these be removed from the list because they are not core services like water or roads. Removing them from the list gives council the ability to move in and out of the forestry market as prices and the situation changes. Toni Morrison said before selling forestry land it would need to be included in the Long Term Plan and be part of the consultation process around this.

The meeting adjourned at 1.40pm and reconvened at 3.30pm.

Cr Leslie asked where the Pukaki Airport figures in this policy. Staff were asked to address this.

# Resolved:

1. That the report be received.

# **Evan Williams/Noel Jackson**

2. That the committee approve the draft Significance and Engagement Policy.

**Graham Smith/Russell Armstrong** 

3. That the committee agree to notify the draft policy for public submissions.

**Graham Smith/Russell Armstrong** 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS THE	
CHAIRMAN DECLARED THE MEETING CLOSED AT 3.331	РΜ

CHAIRMAN:		
DATE:		
DATE:		
X &		

# MACKENZIE DISTRICT COUNCIL

**REPORT TO:** STRATEGY AND POLICY COMMITTEE

**SUBJECT:** ADOPTION OF SIGNIFICANCE AND ENGAGEMENT POLICY

**MEETING DATE:** 25 NOVEMBER 2014

**REF:** PAD 10

FROM: TONI MORRISON

SENIOR POLICY PLANNER

# **PURPOSE OF REPORT:**

To seek that the Committee adopt the final Significance and Engagement Policy.

# **STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS:**

- 1. That the report be received, and
- 2. That the Committee adopt a final Significance and Engagement Policy.

WAYNE BARNETT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

# **ATTACHMENTS:**

Mackenzie District Council Significance and Engagement Policy

# **BACKGROUND:**

Section 76AA of the Local Government Act 2002 requires the Council to adopt a Significance and Engagement Policy (SEP) by 1 December 2014. This new Policy replaces and extends the Council's current Significance Policy, formerly required under section 90 of the Act.

The Significance and Engagement Policy is a mechanism for letting the public know what decisions or matters the council and the community consider to be particularly important, how the council will go about assessing the importance of matters, and how and when the community can expect to be consulted on both.

The draft Policy was notified for public submissions on 17 October 2014. One submission was received, from Mr W. Speck of Tekapo. A copy of this submission was circulated to Committee members on 14 November.

Mr Speck sought that when Council land is to be disposed of, is sold or is proposed for sale, the Council notify through their website and publications that that particular piece of land is coming up for potential sale. Mr Speck noted that this would then give every person a right to enquire about, register an interest in, or make an offer on the land. Mr Speck will attend a hearing of the Committee and will speak to his submission.

Currently, land that is available for disposal is listed in the Long Term Plan (LTP), and is consulted on in that process. However staff agree that notification of land that is proposed for sale should be made clearer so that it is apparent to the community which areas of Council land are available for sale.

Staff propose that Council land that is for sale should be clearly identified, and a process of public consultation undertaken prior to the Council finalising a schedule of Council lands for sale. The proposed list will be put on the Council website and will include readily understood location information including addresses and where practicable photographs, and any other information which would assist community understanding. The community or interested parties can then make submissions to the Council on the land proposed for sale. Once finalised, the website information will be updated every year as land is sold.

Once this list is finalised, prospective purchasers are then able to approach the Council and enter in to negotiations in relation to the land identified for sale. It is not considered necessary or appropriate that public consultation be repeated at this stage, given that the land will have been identified for sale following a public process. It would be costly and inefficient to revisit Council decisions in this manner.

At the time of writing (prior to the hearing), no changes are recommended to the SEP as a result of the submission received. However staff do consider that improving the

quality of information about areas of land for sale following specific public consultation, and making that information more readily accessible through the website, should be undertaken.

No other submissions were received.

The LGA requires all Councils to have adopted a SEP by 1 December 2014. If adopted today, the Council will have met this requirement. The final SEP will then be included in the Council's Long Term Plan.

# **POLICY STATUS:**

N.A.

# **SIGNIFICANCE OF DECISION:**

The decision to adopt the SEP following public consultation is not considered significant.

# **ISSUES & OPTIONS:**

The Council is required to have a SEP in place by 1 December 2014, so to do nothing is not an option. The SEP is a new policy document for Council, and therefore consultation with the community was undertaken. Only one submission was received.

Option 1: The Committee adopt the SEP.

Option 2: The Committee make changes to the SEP as a result of the submission, and adopt an amended SEP.

Option 3: The Committee decline to adopt the SEP.

# **ASSESSMENT OF OPTIONS:**

Option 1 is preferred for the reasons outlined above.

# **CONCLUSION:**

The Council must adopt a Significance and Engagement Policy by 1 December 2014, to comply with the LGA. Attached is the draft Policy which was notified for submissions. It is recommended that the Policy be adopted unamended.

# ATTACHMENT 1

Mackenzie District Council Significance and Engagement Policy

# **Mackenzie District Council**

# SIGNIFICANCE AND ENGAGEMENT POLICY

Contents		Page No:
1:	Introduction 1.1 Purpose of the Significance and Engagement Policy 1.2 Local Government Act requirements 1.3 Interpretation 1.4 Application of the Policy	1 1 2 2 3
2:	General approach to determining significance and making decisions	3
3:	Criteria and procedures for assessing significance 3.1 Thresholds 3.2 Criteria 3.3 Procedures	4 4 5 5
4:	Engagement 4.1 Methods of Engagement 4.2 When Council will Engage 4.3 When the Council may not Engage 4.4 Toolbox for Engagement	6 7 7 8 9
5:	Ngāi Tahu and Papatipu Runanga	10
6:	Strategic Assets	10

#### 1.0 INTRODUCTION

# 1.1 Purpose of the Significance and Engagement Policy

The purpose of this Significance and Engagement Policy is to:

- enable the Council and its communities to identify the degree of significance attached to particular issues, proposals, assets, decisions and activities.
- provide clarity about how and when communities can expect to be engaged in decisions about different issues, assets or other matters.
- inform the Council from the beginning of a decision-making process about the extent, form and type of engagement required.

### 1.2 Local Government Act requirements

The Council is required by the Local Government Act 2002 (LGA) to adopt a Significance and Engagement Policy, which must set out:

- The Council's general approach to determining the significance of proposals and decisions in relation to issues, assets and other matters
- any criteria or procedures that are to be used by the Council in assessing the extent to which issues, proposals, assets, decisions or activities are significant or may have significant consequences
- how the Council will respond to community preferences about engagement on decisions relating to specific issues, assets or other matters, including the form of consultation that may be desirable
- how the Council will engage with communities on other matters.

The Significance and Engagement Policy must list the assets considered by the Council to be strategic assets.

# 1.3 Interpretation

Section 5 of the LGA provides the following definitions:

- **significance**, in relation to any issue, proposal, decision, or other matter that concerns or is before a local authority, means the degree of importance of the issue, proposal, decision, or matter, as assessed by the local authority, in terms of its likely impact on, and likely consequences for,—
  - (a) the district or region:
  - (b) any persons who are likely to be particularly affected by, or interested in, the issue, proposal, decision, or matter:
  - (c) the capacity of the local authority to perform its role, and the financial and other costs of doing so
- **significant**, in relation to any issue, proposal, decision, or other matter, means that the issue, proposal, decision, or other matter has a high degree of significance
- strategic asset, in relation to the assets held by a local authority, means an asset or group of
  assets that the local authority needs to retain if the local authority is to maintain the local
  authority's capacity to achieve or promote any outcome that the local authority determines to be
  important to the current or future well-being of the community; and includes—
  - (a) any asset or group of assets listed in accordance with section 90(2) by the local authority; and (b) any land or building owned by the local authority and required to maintain the local authority's capacity to provide affordable housing as part of its social policy; and

- (c) any equity securities held by the local authority in-
  - (i) a port company within the meaning of the Port Companies Act 1988:
  - (ii) an airport company within the meaning of the Airport Authorities Act 1966.

# 1.4 Application of the Policy

A significant number of decisions made by the Council will be made under legislation that sets out the consultation and decision-making procedures that are required. Examples include the Resource Management Act 1991 and the Civil Defence Emergency Management Act 2002. Even if a decision is clearly a significant one within the meaning of the LGA, where the procedures for decision-making are set out in other legislation, those procedures will be used instead of those contained in this Policy.

This Policy will not apply to decisions that have been in the Long Term or Annual Plan unless there is a significant change being proposed to the initial decision reflected in a Plan. There are also numerous administrative and personnel decisions that are entirely internal to the Council. This Significance and Engagement Policy will not apply to these processes and decisions.

#### 2.0 GENERAL APPROACH TO DETERMINING SIGNIFICANCE AND MAKING DECISIONS

On every issue requiring a policy or strategy decision other than the matters outlined above in Section 1.4, the Council will consider the degree of significance of the issue and the corresponding level of engagement.

The significance of the issue and appropriate forms of engagement will be considered in the earliest possible stages of a proposal or process, before decision-making occurs. If necessary, significance and engagement will be reviewed as the proposal develops and as community views, preferences and values become better known.

In making any decision, the Council will comply with sections 76 - 82 (inclusive) of the LGA, regardless of the degree of significance of the decision or issue. These sections prescribe procedural steps to be followed as may be applicable, and ensure that the Council:

- is clear about why it is making the decision and the issues involved
- has considered and evaluated all reasonably practical options for achieving the objective for which the decision is being made
- has information about the community's views on the issues and the options, and in particular, has
  an understanding of the views and preferences of those likely to be affected by the decision or
  those who have a particular interest in the matter
- invests an appropriate amount of time, money and effort into researching and evaluating the issues and options, commensurate with the significance of the matter, including its importance to the community.

In making any decision, the Council will be satisfied that:

- · it has sufficient information on the relevant issues and options
- it knows enough about and has given adequate consideration to the views and preferences of affected and interested parties.

The significance of the issue or decision will determine how much time, money and effort the Council will invest in exploring and evaluating options and obtaining the views of affected and interested parties. In some instances, there may be particular requirements to learn about the implications of an issue or decision for papatipu Runanga. There may also be issues where there are diverse groups within the community with different interests, views and preferences, where multiple processes will be appropriate to distinguish and recognise the range of positions.

The commitment to invest in exploring options and obtaining the views of communities and affected and interested parties does not mean that the Council will have to fully consult with the public for every decision it makes, nor does it bind the Council to the views of communities and interested or affected parties.

As well as the views of communities and affected and interested parties, there are a wide range of information sources, considerations and perspectives that will inform the Council's decisions, including the requirements of Government policy, technical matters and the financial implications.

### 3.0 CRITERIA AND PROCEDURES FOR ASSESSING SIGNIFICANCE

# 3.1 Thresholds

The following thresholds will be used to determine whether the proposal or decision considered by the Council will be determined to be significant.

- Monetary Any decision not highlighted in either the Long-Term Plan or the Annual Plan and with a cost greater than \$400,000 will be regarded as significant.
- Strategic Assets Any decision to sell, abandon or dispose of any of Councils' strategic assets will be regarded as significant.

Each threshold will be tested independently of other thresholds or criteria.

While this Policy sets out these distinct thresholds, there may be financial or other decisions that do not trigger the thresholds but may also be considered as significant, following an assessment against the criteria in 3.2 below.

#### 3.2 Criteria

In determining the degree of significance of proposals and decisions, the Council will be guided by the following criteria:

- a) The degree of impact on levels of service
- b) the magnitude of the overall benefits that will be achieved for the district, its communities and present and future interests
- c) the magnitude of the net costs of the proposal or decision to the Council
- d) any impact on the Council's capacity to undertake its statutory responsibilities
- e) the extent to which a decision or action is consequential to, or promotes, a decision or action that has already been taken by the Council
- f) the level of community interest in the proposal, decision or issue
- g) the extent to which the proposal or decision impacts upon community members or groups, and the numbers of people or groups affected
- h) the extent to which the community's views on the matter are already known
- i) the values and interests of Ngāi Tahu whanau, hapū and rūnanga, as mana whenua for the region
- j) where proposals or decisions relate to land or a body of water, the implications for the relationships of Ngāi Tahu and their culture and traditions with their ancestral land, water, sites, wāhi tapu, valued flora and fauna and other taonga
- k) the potential effects on delivery of the Council's policy and strategies
- I) any inconsistencies with any existing policy, plan or legislation
- m) the degree of impact on rates or debt
- n) the practical demands of efficient decision-making in situations of urgency

The majority of these criteria could be considered to fall on a continuum rather than being an absolute determination. They may be considered as being of low, medium or high significance rather than significant or not significant.

If any of the criteria are met, the proposal or decision may have a higher degree of significance. However, a single criterion in isolation is not necessarily determinative of significance. The criteria are to be considered collectively to make this determination.

The application of the criteria is a matter of judgement for the Council.

#### 3.3 Procedures

Every report to the Council will include a statement indicating that the issue of significance has been considered, which reflects an assessment of the significance of the issue, proposal or decision.

If an issue, proposal or decision is considered to be significant or likely to be significant, the relevant Executive Manager will include a section in their report to Council which will:

- identify how the decision sought fits this Significance and Engagement Policy;
- evaluate it against the thresholds and criteria contained in this Policy;
- outline what has been done to ensure compliance with sections 76 82 (inclusive) of the LGA;
- include a recommendation on how the proposal or decision should be treated;
- include a recommendation that the Council determine the level of significance of the particular issue or decision, and
- include a recommendation addressing whether and how community engagement should occur, in accordance with this Policy.

The Policy will apply with appropriate adjustments to decisions made under delegation to Council committees and community boards.

This Policy will not apply to decisions that have been in the Long Term or Annual Plan unless there is a significant change being proposed to the initial decision reflected in a Plan.

#### **4.0 ENGAGEMENT**

The level of engagement undertaken will reflect the level of significance of a proposal or issue. For example, an issue that has a high degree of significance will require a higher level of engagement with the public. The method of engagement will differ for each issue depending on location, level of significance, and community preferences.

Engagement provides an opportunity for the public to express a view on the decision or proposal being considered by the Council. The community views expressed through an engagement process will be considered and taken into account, along with other information such as costs and benefits, legislative requirements and technical advice.

Differing levels and forms of engagement may be required during the varying phases of consideration and decision-making on an issue, and for different community groups or stakeholders. The Council will review the appropriateness and effectiveness of the engagement strategy and methods as the process proceeds.

Engagement may not necessarily result in a win/win situation, complete agreement or consensus. However, engagement should allow all relevant views and options to be identified and then considered before a decision is made.

Community engagement can allow for an exchange of information, points of view and options for decisions between affected and interested people and decision-makers before a decision is made. It

does not mean that the decision will be delegated to those involved in the engagement process. It means that the decision made will have been informed and improved by the public's involvement.

# 4.1 Methods of Engagement

Many methods of engagement can be used by Council, subject to the degree of significance of the issue. It is essential that Council does not use a homogenous approach to engagement, and utilises engagement tools appropriate to the location, significance of the issue, and community affected. Section 4.4 below describes a list of methods of engagement currently undertaken or available to Council; however, the Council is not limited to these methods.

When engaging with the community, the Council should consider the varied interest groups within society, including but not limited to: cultural groups, the whole District, specific communities (both rural and urban), wards, Community Boards, youth, older generations, businesses, and specific interest groups.

Committees of Council and elected bodies are to be used as part of Council's engagement network, to advocate on behalf of their communities to Council on Council issues including policy and decision-making. They are also the first point of call for Council and Council staff to assess the degree of interest and engagement a community may have with an issue, as part of determining the significance of a matter.

The Council should be informing, consulting with, involving, collaborating and/or empowering residents and ratepayers to be engaged with Council decision-making.

The Council will be open to new and developing methods of engagement through the use of technology and innovation.

# 4.2 When Council will Engage

The Council will apply the principles of s82 of the LGA when determining engagement.

#### (a) When legislation requires that consultation be undertaken:

The Council will consult when it has a legislative requirement to consult (such as when required by the Local Government Act 2002, Resource Management Act 199, Reserves Act 1977, Land Transport Management Act 2003<sup>1</sup>). Examples of these areas are: the adoption and amendment/s to the Long Term Plan; adoption and amendment/s to a significant bylaw; transfer of ownership of a significant strategic asset; and changes to financial policies.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> As noted in Section 1.4 above, where specific legislation such as the Resource Management Act prescribes procedures for consultation, section 82(5) of the LGA broadly allows that authorising legislation's procedures to apply.

In these cases, the Council will undertake these consultation processes in accordance with the legislative requirements guiding them. However, the Council may choose to consult further depending on the degree of significance of the matter being considered and notwithstanding the legislative requirements.

# (b) When a significant proposal or decision is being considered:

Subject to consideration of factors under section 4.3 of this Policy, the Council will give consideration to undertaking what it considers to be an appropriate form of engagement when a 'significant decision' is proposed.

A 'significant decision' is one which has been identified as such under this Policy. *Note:* a 'significant' decision will not automatically trigger application of the Special Consultative Procedure (SCP). For more information about the SCP refer to the LGA 2002 sections 83, 86, 87 and 93A.

#### (c) For some matters that are not considered significant:

In general, where a matter is not considered significant under this Policy, formal consultation will not be undertaken. This is consistent with clause 4.3 (a) of this Policy. However, in some situations where the Council considers community involvement or notification is appropriate, informal feedback or notification processes may be followed.

#### 4.3 When the Council may not Engage

Information is always necessary for the decision making process. However, there are times when it is not necessary, appropriate or possible to engage the community on a matter or decision. The Council may also choose not to consult on a matter. In doing so it will make this determination in accordance with the criteria below.

The Council will not engage when:

- (a) The matter is not of a nature or significance that requires consultation (LGA 2002, s82(4)(c); or
- (b) The Council already has a sound understanding of the views and preferences of the persons likely to be affected by or interested in the matter (s82(4)(b) LGA 2002); or
- (c) There is a need for confidentiality or commercial sensitivity (s82(4)(d) LGA 2002); or
- (d) The costs of consultation outweigh the benefits of it (s82(4)(e) LGA 2002); or
- (e) The matter has already been addressed by the Council's policies or plans, which have previously been consulted on; or
- (f) An immediate or quick response or decision is needed or it is not reasonably practicable to engage; or

- (g) Works are required unexpectedly or following further investigations on projects, already approved by the Council; or
- (h) Business as usual the works required are related to the operation and maintenance of a Council asset and responsible management requires the works to take place; or
- (i) When Council has consulted on the issue in the last 24 months.

Where the above listed circumstances apply and consultation is not to be undertaken, the Council is still required to give consideration to the views and preferences of persons likely to be affected by, or to have an interest in, the matter (LGA 2002 section 78 (1)). The LGA requires that this consideration be in proportion to the significance of the matters affected by the decision (section 79 (1)).

# 4.4 Toolbox for Engagement

The Council currently uses the following methods of engagement. The Council may continue to use these methods of engagement, but is not limited to these when engaging with the public:

### Inform:

- Council newsletters
- Weekly/daily newspapers
- · Community newsletters
- Electronic messages (eg, email, online newsletters, social media)
- Flyers
- Website
- Radio

# Consult:

- Submissions
- Hearings
- Feedback processes
- Surveys
- Open Days

#### Involve:

- Public or on-site meetings
- Targeting existing organisations/groups within the community eg service clubs

# Collaborate:

- Talking with communities
- CWMS Zone Committees
- Key partnerships with existing community organisations
- Hall committees

#### **Empower:**

- · Community Boards
- Special Subcommittees

#### 5.0 NGAI TAHU & PAPATIPU RUNANGA

The LGA provides principles and requirements for local authorities that are intended to facilitate participation by Māori in local authority decision-making processes (for example, sections 81 and 82(2)). This is to recognise and respect the Crown's responsibility to take appropriate account of the principles of the Treaty of Waitangi and to maintain and improve opportunities for Māori to contribute to local government decision-making processes.

While the LGA sets out provisions relating to all Māori, it is recognised that within the Mackenzie District, Ngāi Tahu are the tangata whenua. There are three Papatipu Rūnanga that have an interest in the Mackenzie District: Te Rūnanga o Arowhenua based at Arowhenua, Temuka, Te Rūnanga o Waihao based just north of the Waitaki River, South Canterbury, and Te Runanga O Moeraki based at Moeraki. They have a special status in terms of the Council's resource management activities. In addition to the Local Government Act obligations, the Resource Management Act 1991 (RMA) gives councils specific obligations regarding kaitiakitanga, the principles of the Treaty of Waitangi and the relationship between Māori and their culture and traditions with their ancestral lands, water, sites, wāhi tapu and other taonga. In the Canterbury region, the Ngāi Tahu Claims Settlement Act 1998 includes confirmation of the ability for Ngāi Tahu to express its traditional kaitiaki relationship with the environment.

The Council considers it important to better establish relationships with these Rūnanga, as these are seen as key relationships in terms of the contribution of Maori to the decision-making process. Proactively providing for engagement will enable early identification of matters of significance to the Runanga and appropriate engagement in relation to decision-making processes. The Council will endeavour to extend and promote opportunities for involvement as far as practicable, and as available resources allow.

#### 6.0 STRATEGIC ASSETS

The Mackenzie District Council considers the following assets to be strategic in terms of the Local Government Act 2002:

- a) The entire urban and rural roading network of the Mackenzie District.
- b) The urban water supplies of Burkes Pass, Fairlie, Lake Tekapo and Twizel.
- c) The piped rural water supplies of Albury, Allandale, and Downlands (Albury to Cave section).
- d) The stock water race systems at Ashwick/Opuha, Punaroa/Eversley and School Road.
- e) The wastewater reticulation and treatment systems at Burkes Pass, Fairlie, Lake Tekapo and Twizel.
- f) The stormwater reticulation systems at Fairlie, Lake Tekapo and Twizel.
- g) The Council cemeteries at Albury, Burkes Pass, Fairlie, Tekapo and Twizel.

- h) All Council's parks, recreation reserves, sports fields and facilities held under the Reserves Act 1977 or otherwise.
- i) Council's swimming pools at Fairlie and Twizel.
- Council's stock of tenanted pensioner housing. j)
- k) Medical Centres at Fairlie and Twizel<sup>2</sup>.
- The Twizel Events Centre and the community hall at Lake Tekapo.
- m) The Mackenzie Community Centre at Fairlie.
- n) Council's administration buildings in Fairlie and Twizel.
- o) Council's shareholding in Alpine Energy Limited.

For the avoidance of doubt, assets that are listed for sale in the Council's Long Term Plan are not considered Strategic Assets.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> The potential disposal of the Council's interest in the Twizel Medical Centre is currently undergoing consultation. If the transfer proceeds, then the Twizel Medical Centre will be removed from this list of strategic assets owned by Council. The outcome of this should be known before this draft Significance and Engagement Policy is required to be adopted, i.e. by 1 December 2014.